



Gloucester City Council
CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
Certificate Number: 2017-036

The Gloucester City Council, at a meeting held on **Tuesday, February 14, 2017** at 7:00 p.m. in the Kyrouz Auditorium, City Hall, voted to approve the following:

IN CITY COUNCIL:

MOTION: On a motion by Councilor LeBlanc, seconded by Councilor Nolan, the City Council voted 9 in favor, 0 opposed, to accept Fire Chief Eric Smith's suggested revisions to GCO Chapter 2, Article VII, and Chapter 8 as presented in a memorandum dated December 27, 2016 and incorporated herein.

Joanne M. Senos

Joanne M. Senos, City Clerk

Date: **FEB 16 2017**

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR

[Signature]
Sefatia Romeo Theken

VETOED BY THE MAYOR

[Signature]
Sefatia Romeo Theken

SIGNED THIS 16th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017

All Ordinances shall become effective 31 days after passage except
Emergency Orders and Zoning Amendments shall become effective the next day.

ARTICLE VII. - ~~CIVIL DEFENSE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT~~

FOOTNOTE(S):

--- (22) ---

Editor's note—Sections 1—11 of a nonamendatory ordinance adopted January 19, 1988, has been included herein at the discretion of the editor as article VII, §§ 2-650—2-660.

Sec. 2-650. - Short title.

This article shall be known and may be cited and referred to as the "~~Civil Defense Emergency Management~~ Ordinance of the City of Gloucester."

(Ord. of 1-19-1988, § 1)

Sec. 2-651. - Intent and purpose.

- (a) It is the intent and purpose of this article to establish an office that will ensure the complete and efficient utilization of all the city's facilities and combat disasters resulting from attack or other emergency situations.
- (b) The city ~~office of civil defense~~ department of emergency management will be the coordinating agency for all activity in connection with emergency management-civil defense; it will be the instrument through which the mayor may exercise the authority and discharge the responsibilities vested in him/her in the appendix of to M.G.L. c. 33, as amended, and this article.

(Ord. of 1-19-1988, § 2)

Sec. 2-652. - Definitions.

The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation of this article:

~~Civil defense~~ Emergency management shall mean the preparation for and the carrying out of all emergency functions, other than functions for which military forces other than the National Guard are primarily responsible, for the purpose of minimizing and repairing injury and damage resulting from disasters caused by attack, sabotage or other hostile action; or by riot or other civil disturbance; or by fire, flood, earthquake or other natural causes. Said functions shall include specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, firefighting and police services other than the actual control or suppression of riot or other civil disturbance, medical and health services, rescue, engineering and air raid warning services, evacuation of persons from stricken areas, emergency welfare services, communications, radiological, chemical and other special weapons of defense, emergency transportation, existing or property assigned functions of plant protection, temporary restoration of public utility services and other functions.

~~Civil defense~~ Emergency management-forces shall mean the employees, equipment and facilities and all city departments, boards, institutions and commissions; and, in addition, it shall include all volunteer personnel, equipment and facilities contributed by, or obtained from, volunteer persons or agencies.

~~Civil defense~~ Emergency management-volunteer shall mean any person duly registered, identified and appointed by the director of the ~~office of civil defense~~ department of emergency management -and assigned to participate in the civil defense-emergency management activity.

Director shall mean the director of the city ~~office of civil defense~~ department of emergency management, appointed as prescribed in this article.

Mayor shall mean the mayor or the acting mayor as provided in Charter, § 3-10(a), except that the acting mayor shall assume such office immediately upon the mayor's becoming unable to perform the duties of the office.

Regulations shall include plans, programs and other emergency procedures.

Volunteer shall mean contributing a service, equipment or facilities to the ~~civil defense emergency~~ management organization without remuneration.

(Ord. of 1-19-1988, § 3)

Sec. 2-653. - Organization and appointments.

- (a) The mayor is authorized and directed to establish an organization for ~~civil defense emergency~~ management in accordance with the commonwealth ~~civil defense emergency management~~ plan and program. Said organization is to be known as the city ~~office of civil defense~~ department of emergency management.
- (b) The organization shall be constituted as follows:
 - (1) There shall be a director who shall be appointed by the mayor and who shall have direct responsibility for the organization, administration and operation of the city ~~office of civil defense~~ department of emergency management, subject to the direction and control of the mayor.
 - (2) Every agency and all members of every department and division of the government of the city may be employed as part of the ~~civil defense emergency management~~ organization.
 - (3) Whenever the federal government or any agency or officer thereof, or any person, firm or corporation, shall offer to the city services, equipment, supplies, materials or funds, by way of gift, grant or loan for purposes of ~~civil defense emergency management~~, the city, acting through its city council, may accept such offer, and upon acceptance, the city council may authorize any officer of the city to receive such services, equipment, supplies, materials or funds on behalf of the city, and subject to the terms of the offer and the rules and regulations, if any, of the agency making the offer.

(Ord. of 1-19-1988, § 4)

Sec. 2-654. - Emergency powers and duties.

- (a) The mayor.
 - (1) The mayor may exercise the emergency power and authority necessary to fulfill his general powers and duties as defined in the city Charter, article 3. The city council may convene to perform its legislative and administrative powers as the situation demands, and shall receive reports relative to ~~civil defense emergency management~~ activities. Nothing in that article shall be construed as abridging or curtailing the powers or restrictions of the city council as defined in the city Charter, article 2.
 - (2) During any period when disaster threatens or when the city has been struck by disaster, within the definition of this article, the mayor may promulgate such regulations as he/she deems necessary to protect life and property and preserve critical resources. Such regulations may include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - a. Regulations prohibiting or restricting the movement of vehicles in order to facilitate the work of ~~civil defense emergency management~~ forces, or to facilitate the mass movement of persons from critical areas within or without the city.

- b. Regulations pertaining to the movement of persons from areas deemed to be hazardous or vulnerable to disaster.
 - c. Such other regulations necessary to preserve public peace, health and safety.
 - d. Regulations promulgated in accordance with the authority above will be given widespread circulation by proclamations published and uttered by newspaper and radio. These regulations will have the force of ordinance when duly filed with the city clerk.
- (3) The mayor may obtain vital supplies, equipment and other properties found lacking and needed for the protection of health, life and property of the people, and bind the city for fair value thereof.
- (4) The mayor may require emergency services of any city officer or employee. If regular city forces are determined inadequate, the mayor may require the services of such other personnel as he/she is able to obtain, including citizen volunteers. All duly authorized persons rendering emergency services shall be entitled to such privileges and immunities as are provided by commonwealth law, the city Charter and ordinances for regular city employees and other registered and identified civil-defense-emergency management and disaster workers.
- (5) The mayor shall cause to be prepared the basic plan herein referenced, shall exercise his/her ordinary powers as mayor, all of the special powers conferred upon him/her by the city Charter and this Code, and all powers conferred upon him/her by any commonwealth statute, or other lawful authority.
- (b) Director of the office of civil defense department of emergency management.
- (1) The director, acting under the supervision-authority of the mayor, shall be responsible for the planning, coordination and operation of the civil-defense-emergency management activity in the city. He/she shall maintain liaison with the commonwealth and federal authorities and the authorities of other nearby political subdivisions as to ensure the most effective operation of the civil-defense-emergency management plan. The director's duties shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
- a. Developing or causing to be developed, in collaboration with other public and private agencies, mutual aid arrangements for reciprocal civil-defense-emergency management aid and assistance in case of disaster too great to be dealt with unassisted.
 - b. Coordinating the recruitment of volunteer personnel and agencies to augment the personnel and facilities of the city for civil-defense-emergency management purposes.
 - c. Developing and coordinating plans for the immediate use of all of the facilities, equipment, manpower and other resources of the city for the purpose of minimizing or preventing damage to persons and property; and protecting and restoring to usefulness governmental services and public utilities necessary for the public health, safety and welfare.
 - d. Negotiating and concluding agreements with owners or persons in control of buildings or other property for the use of such buildings or other property for the civil-defense-emergency management purposes and designating suitable buildings as public shelters which comply with standards for shelters promulgated by the commonwealth director of civil-defense emergency management.
 - e. Educating the civilian population, through public informational programs, as to actions necessary and required for the protection of their persons and property in case of enemy attack, or disaster, as defined herein, either impending or present.
 - f. Conducting public practice alerts to ensure the efficient operation of the civil-defense emergency management forces and to familiarize residents with civil-defense-emergency management regulations, procedures and operations.
 - g. Coordinating the activity of all other public and private agencies engaged in any civil-defense emergency management activity.